
 

                                                                                                 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

PZHAC WORK SESSION 
AGENDA 

JUNE 18, 2018 
 

THE PLANNING, ZONING AND HISTORICAL APPROPRIATENESS COMMISSION (PZHAC) WILL HOLD A WORK 
SESSION, MONDAY, JUNE 18, 2018 AT 5:30 P.M. IN THE BOARD ROOM OF THE MESILLA TOWN HALL, 2231 
AVENIDA DE MESILLA. 
 
Item 1: Submitted by Maria Rios; a request to discuss the construction of a freestanding carport on a residential property at 2472 Calle 
de Cura (Case 060736). Zoned: Historical Residential (HR) 
Item 2: Submitted by Gilbert Madrid for Eric and Teresa Sanchez, a request to discuss plans to repair windows, doors, lintels, vigas, 
and stucco; and repaint a historic dwelling at 2231 Calle de Parian (Case 060738). Zoned: Historic Residential (HR)  
Item 3: Submitted by Norman Fristoe for LAMA Properties, LLC; a request to discuss plans to conduct renovations on a storage 
structure at 3116 Avenida de Mesilla (Case 060739). Zoned: Rural Agricultural (RA) 
 

 
PZHAC REGULAR MEETING 

AGENDA 
JUNE 18, 2018   

 
THE PLANNING, ZONING AND HISTORICAL APPROPRIATENESS COMMISSION (PZHAC) WILL HOLD ITS 
REGULARLY SCHEDULED MEETING MONDAY, JUNE 18, 2018 AT 6:00 P.M. IN THE BOARD ROOM OF THE 
MESILLA TOWN HALL, 2231 AVENIDA DE MESILLA. 
 
I. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
II. ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM  

 
III. CHANGES/APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
IV. *ACCEPTANCE OF THE CONSENT AGENDA 

Note: Items on the agenda indicated by an asterisk (*) are on the consent agenda and will be voted on with one motion unless a 
Commissioner requests that a specific item be removed for discussion. 

A. *PZHAC MINUTES – Meeting minutes of June 4, 2018.  
  

V. PZHAC NEW BUSINESS: 
A. PUBLIC INPUT ON CASES 
B. CASES: 

Building Permits 
1. Case 060736 - 2472 Calle de Cura, submitted by Maria Rios; a request for a permit to build a freestanding carport on a 

residential property at this address. Zoned: Historical Residential (HR) (Discussed at Work Session – Item 1) 
2. Case 060737 - 1986 Calle de Cura, submitted by Dianne Moore; a request for a building permit to add a gate across a 

driveway, and replace an existing four foot high white picket fence with a six foot high white picket fence around a 
property at this address. Zoned: Historic Residential (HR). 

3. Case 060738 - 2231 Calle de Parian, submitted by Gilbert Madrid for Eric and Teresa Sanchez, a request for a 
building permit to repair windows, doors, lintels, vigas, and stucco; and repaint a historic dwelling at this address. 
Zoned: Historic Residential (HR) (Discussed at Work Session – Item 2) 

4. Case 060739 – 3116 Avenida de Mesilla, submitted by Norman Fristoe for LAMA Properties, LLC; a request for a 
building permit to renovate a storage structure at this address. Zoned: Rural Agricultural (RA)  (Discussed at Work 
Session – Item 3) 

 
Business Registration 
5. Registration 0727 - 2011 Avenida de Mesilla, submitted by Mickey Balderas for “The Bean Cafe”; a request for a 

business registration to transfer ownership of an existing cafe at this address. Zoned: Historical Commercial (HC) 
 



 

  
 

VI. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
  
VII. PZHAC/STAFF COMMENTS  

 
VIII. ADJOURNMENT  

NOTICE 

If you need an accommodation for a disability to enable you to fully participate in the hearing 
or meeting, please contact us at 524-3262 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.   

Posted on 6/14/18 at the following locations: Town Hall - 2231 Avenida de Mesilla; Public 
Safety Building - 2670 Calle de Parian; Mesilla Community Center - 2251 Calle de Santiago; 
Shorty’s Food Mart - 2290 Avenida de Mesilla; Ristramnn Chile Co. - 2531 Avenida de Mesilla 
and the U.S. Post Office - 2253 Calle de Parian. 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

PZHAC NEW BUSINESS 

JUNE 18, 2018 

 

WORK SESSION 

 

  



PZHAC WORK SESSION 
JUNE 18, 2018 

ITEM 1 
 
 

Submitted by Maria Rios; a request to discuss the construction of a freestanding carport on a residential property at 2472 
Calle de Cura (Case 060736). Zoned: Historical Residential (HR)  
 
The purpose of this request is to determine what will need to be done to bring a carport that was built without a permit 
into compliance with the Code. The applicant built the carport (see attached photos) without first obtaining a building 
permit or review of the carport by the PZHAC. The applicant has been informed that, even though the carport has been 
built, a building permit and review by the PZHAC is still needed to ensure that the carport is not out of character with the 
architecture and historical aspect of the area. (Changes to the carport might be needed if it is determined that the carport is 
out of character with the area.) The applicant has been charged double for the permit, as provided for in the Code for 
construction without a permit. 
 
The carport is a simple open frame design with steel uprights in the corners and a corrugated metal roof. Other than the 
steel uprights, there are no walls or other structural members, and the carport is not attached to the main dwelling. The 
carport covers the driveway and is adequate for two cars.  
 
The dwelling was constructed in the 1920’s and is listed in the Historic Register for the Town (see attached). It is 
considered to have local overall significance. Since the carport is not attached to the dwelling and is not part of the 
dwelling, it does not directly change the architectural or historical significance of the dwelling itself.  However, the 
PZHAC will need to determine if the carport, as constructed, has a negative impact on the property or the surrounding 
area. 
 
The applicant will be present at the work session to provide further details about the proposed construction, and to 
answer any questions that may arise. 
 

VIEW OF THE CARPORT FROM CALLE DE CURA 

 
  



Doña Ana County, NM
General Reference Maps

Select Search Type: 2014 Aerial Addresses County Address Points

Map Themes
Parcels

UDC Zoning

Roads and Transportation

NM House Districts

NM Senate Districts

County Commission Districts

City Council Districts

Median Household Income

General Land Ownership

Account Number: R0400537
Parcel Number: 4006138181078
Owner: RIOS MARIA L
Mail Address: 2472 W CALLE DE
CURA
Subdivision: 
Property Address: 2472 CALLE DE
CURA
Acres: 0.06000918

Maps Legend
+
–

http://assessor.donaanacounty.org/assessor/taxweb/account.jsp?accountNum=R0400537&guest=true


OTHER VIEWS OF THE CARPORT FROM CALLE DE CURA 

 
 

 
 
 



OTHER CARPORTS THAT HAVE BEEN ALLOWED IN THE AREA 

 
 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

  



larry
Rectangle

larry
Rectangle



larry
Rectangle





PZHAC WORK SESSION 
JUNE 18, 2018 

ITEM 2 

 

Submitted by Gilbert Madrid for Eric and Teresa Sanchez, a request to discuss plans to repair windows, doors, lintels, 
vigas, and stucco; and repaint a historic dwelling at 2231 Calle de Parian (Case 060738). Zoned: Historic Residential 
(HR) 

The applicant would like to replace or repair the existing windows in order to improve the thermal efficiency of the 
windows, as well as to repair existing frames that have become worn and deteriorated due to use and weather. The 
applicant would also like to replace or repair the ends of existing vigas on the front exterior wall of the structure and add 
vigas to places where they appear to be missing. The applicant will then repair and repaint any stucco that has been 
damaged. This will be painted to match the remainder of the existing stucco.   

The structure is in the Historic Register (see attached) and appears to have been built in the 1850’s and used to house 
elements of the Mexican army and their horses. According to the Register, it is considered historically and 
architecturally significant to the Town, and has National historic significance. It is also one of the oldest structures in 
Mesilla.  There appear to have been some changes to the structure over the years, including closing off a door that 
appears to have been at the front of the structure (see attached photo showing were the door appears to have been). 
Several windows and a door have been replaced. However, the structure does not appear to have been substantially 
modified since the inventory was taken, and many of the existing features appear to be original. The proposed windows 
will need to maintain the historical character of the structure. Additionally, if the proposed work is done in conformance 
with the recommendations of the Secretary of the Interior (see attached, especially with respect to windows), there 
should be no changes to the historical character of the structure or property.  (The applicant was given a copy of the 
guidelines and told that the PZHAC would be using these to determine if the proposed repairs will be acceptable from a 
Historic Preservation point of view.) 

The zoning of the property containing the dwelling was changed last month from Historic Commercial (HC) to Historic 
residential (HR). For most of the last century, the structure was use as both a residence and a commercial structure used 
for primarily retail purposes (grocery store, gift shop, and offices) and as a post office. Prior to that, the structure was used 
originally as a barracks for the Mexican army (1840’s to 1850’s) and as a private residence after that.   

According to Lynette Pollari, Historical Architect for the NM SHPO (contacted 5/23/18 with respect to the zone change 
of the property from HC to HR), the use of the structure as a residential structure is more in line with the original 
historical use of the structure as a barracks. Since the proposed work is to enhance the use of the structure for residential 
use, the purpose of the work is not out of character with the original historical use of the structure. 

The PZHAC will need to determine that the proposed repairs will not result in any changes to the structure that will affect 
its Historical character, and that the proposed repairs will be consistent with the following sections of the Code: 

Chapter 18.35 HR – Historical Residential Zone 
The repairs could be compatible with the HR zoning of the property if there are no changes to the wood work is 
finished in the same style as the original woodwork, or it is repaired in place. 
 
Chapter 18.33 – Historic Preservation 
18.33.040 Declaration of purpose and statement of public policy. 
A. The board of trustees declares that the historical heritage of Mesilla and its historic buildings and its historic 
districts are among its most valued and important assets. The board finds that some buildings having historical, 
architectural, aesthetic and cultural value have been neglected, altered or destroyed notwithstanding the feasibility 
of preserving and continuing the use of such buildings and without adequate consideration of the irreplaceable loss 
to the public and the town. The board finds that the historic character of Mesilla is of vital importance in 
maintaining the economy of the town and that its historic landmarks and the buildings in its historic district can be 
preserved, rehabilitated and used. The board finds that this chapter benefits all the residents of Mesilla and all the 
owners of property.  
B. The board of trustees declares as a matter of public policy that the preservation, protection and use of historic 
landmarks and buildings in the historic districts are a public necessity because they have a special character or a 
special historic, architectural, aesthetic or cultural value and thus serve as visible reminders of the history and 
heritage of this town, state and nation. The board declares as a matter of public policy that this chapter is required in 
the interest of the health, safety, welfare and economic well-being of the public. The board declares as a matter of 



public policy that the identification and designation of historic landmarks and historic districts and the approval or 
disapproval of exterior changes to designated property or their demolition or relocation or new construction on the 
site are stated to be a public purpose. [Ord. 2011-03] 
 

Since this is a repair that will not change the use of the structure, and since the changes will need toaddress the guidelines 
set forth by the Secretary of the Interior for Historic structures as well as the requirements of Section 18.33 – Historic 
Preservation of the Code, the PZHAC will need to determine that the proposed work will meet these requirements. Also, 
the proposed work will need to meet the requirements of the Building code where applicable.  
 
The applicant and/or representative will be present at the work session to provide further details about the proposed 
construction and will be available to answer any questions that may arise. 

 

PHOTO OF SUBJECT STRUCTURE FROM CALLE DE PARIAN (STREET SIDE) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Doña Ana County, NM
General Reference Maps

Select Search Type: 2014 Aerial Addresses County Address Points

Map Themes
Parcels

UDC Zoning

Roads and Transportation

NM House Districts

NM Senate Districts

County Commission Districts

City Council Districts

Median Household Income

General Land Ownership

Account Number: R0400299
Parcel Number: 4006137219509
Owner: SANCHEZ ERIC L TRUSTEE
Mail Address: PO BOX 358
Subdivision: 
Property Address: 2331 CALLE DE
PARIAN
Acres: 0.2

Maps Legend
+
–

http://assessor.donaanacounty.org/assessor/taxweb/account.jsp?accountNum=R0400299&guest=true


PHOTOS OF SUBJECT STRUCTURE FROM CALLE DE PARIAN (STREET SIDE) 

 
 

 



PHOTOS OF SUBJECT STRUCTURE FROM CALLE DE PARIAN (STREET SIDE) 

 
 

 



 

 
 

 



VIEWS OF WEST SIDE OF STRUCTURE 

 
 

 



VIEW OF WINDOWS ON WEST SIDE OF STRUCTURE 

 
 

 



 
VIEW OF WINDOWS ON SOUTH SIDE OF STRUCTURE 

 
 

SOUTH SIDE OF STRUCTURE SHOWING GARAGE CONVERSION  

 



PHOTOS OF THE COURTYARD AT THE REAR OF THE DWELLING (SOUTH SIDE) 

 
 

 



VIEW OF EAST SIDE OF PROPERTY 

 
 

VIEW OF NEIGHBORING PROPERTY TO THE EAST  

 





larry
Rectangle

larry
Rectangle

larry
Rectangle

larry
Rectangle

larry
Rectangle

larry
Line



larry
Rectangle











































PZHAC WORK SESSION 
JUNE 18, 2018 

ITEM 3 
 

Submitted by Norman Fristoe for LAMA Properties, LLC; a request to discuss plans to conduct renovations on a storage 
structure at 3116 Avenida de Mesilla (Case 060739). Zoned: Rural Agricultural (RA) 
 
The purpose of this request is to allow the applicant to complete work on an existing accessory structure that will be used 
as a storage building. This structure has been on the property for years and was used for a variety of uses, including 
storage, and as an accessory dwelling, according to the applicant.  (Staff has not found any proof at this time that the 
structure was actually legally converted to an accessory dwelling in the past.)  
 
Remodeling of the structure to a 1200 square foot “guest house” was requested by the applicant in 2006 (Case 2006-147). 
The BOT discussed the use of the dwelling as a residence for the applicant, but according to the Code (as quoted by the 
BOT at the time - see attached excerpt from the August 21, 2006 BOT minutes) it could not be rented.  The main structure 
could be used as a rental, however. A decision on the application was postponed by BOT. Staff has not found any proof 
that the request was actually approved or that the structure was legally converted to an accessory dwelling.   
 
The property was also the subject of a request for a Special Use Permit for an Assisted Living Operation in 2012 (Case 
012129). This case was approved by the BOT on January 28, 2013, but was not pursued.   
 
Recently, the applicant has started renovating the structure to create a 1200 square foot guest house. According to the 
applicant, Sandoval Construction was hired to do the work, and acquired a permit electronically from CID without going 
through the Town PZHAC as required by the Code. A stop work order was issued by CID at the request of the Town, and 
the applicant was informed of the Town process. According to the applicant, he had been assured by Sandoval 
Construction that they had gone through the required process. The applicant was informed that under Section 18.10 
(Definitions) of the Code, a “guest house” would be limited to 600 square feet in size, and that the 1200 square foot 
design he was using would not be allowed. Since there are no provisions in the Code at this time for a second structure on 
a property in the RA district to be over 600 square feet in size, the applicant has decided to complete and use the structure 
as a storage unit. The applicant was informed that all such work in the Town requires review and approval by the PZHAC.  
The applicant has been charged double for the permit, as provided for in the Code for construction without a permit. 
 
A 1200 square foot storage structure is allowed on the property, and this structure has existed here for years. The structure 
originally had a fairly flat roof. The applicant is converting the roof to a pitched roof. Since one side of the structure is 
located on the property line, and since the roof will now be pitched with a good portion of run-off being directed to the 
neighboring property to the north, a gutter along this side of the structure should be required to redirect run-off back onto 
the applicant’s property. The wall along the property line will also need to meet building code requirements for a zero lot-
line structure.  Additionally, the restroom facility currently installed in the structure should be allowed to remain, since 
restrooms in storage structures and garages are not uncommon, provided that there are no other fixtures (kitchen plumbing 
or electrical stub-outs, laundry facilities, etc.) in the structure that would result in it being able to be used as a dwelling.  
 
Also, the proposed carport at the east end of the structure is a feature that could be allowed on a storage structure. The 
applicant has been informed that any use of the structure as a dwelling will need to meet all requirements of the Code that 
might exist at the time a conversion is requested.  
 
The applicant will be present at the work session to provide further details about the proposed construction, and to 
answer any questions that may arise.  



Doña Ana County, NM
General Reference Maps

Select Search Type: 2014 Aerial Addresses County Address Points

Map Themes
Parcels

UDC Zoning

Roads and Transportation

NM House Districts

NM Senate Districts

County Commission Districts

City Council Districts

Median Household Income

General Land Ownership

Account Number: R0400696
Parcel Number: 4006138413125
Owner: LAMA PROPERTIES LLC
Mail Address: 780 S WALNUT BLDG
#6
Subdivision: CANAMEX ACRES (BK 21
PG 569 - 0610453)
Property Address: 3116 AVENIDA DE
MESILLA
Acres: 1.1

Maps Legend
+
–

http://assessor.donaanacounty.org/assessor/taxweb/account.jsp?accountNum=R0400696&guest=true


 
PHOTO SHOWING THE EAST SIDE OT THE MAIN DWELLING AND STORAGE STRUCTURE 

 
 

 
 







 

BOT MINUTES 08-14-06 - 1 - 

EXCERPTS FROM THE AUGUST 14, 2006 BOT MEETING MINUTES  1 
 2 

 BOARD OF TRUSTEE 3 
REGULAR MEETING 4 

August 14, 2006 5 
7:00PM 6 

 7 
MAYOR: Michael M. Cadena 8 
 9 
TRUSTEES: Mayor Pro Tem Caro   Trustee Barraza  10 
   Trustee Williamson   Trustee Nelson 11 
 12 
STAFF: Juan Fuentes, TC/T  Rosanne Herrera, Secretary    13 
  Steve Decker, CDC   Jeff Gray, Deputy 14 
  Arnie Castaneda, PWD  Chad Zecha, Fire Chief 15 
  Susan Krueger, DTC        16 
       17 
PUBLIC: Pat Taylor  Steve Ramirez  Tom Schuster 18 
  Harry Evans  Eric Palma  Bryce Jones 19 
  John Casal  Eva Mendez  Enrique Salas 20 
  Mary Feldblam  Cathilia Flores  Vicki Simons 21 
  Bobby Gutierrez Dean Cross  Xavier Jurado 22 
  Arturo Jurado  Richard Bombach John Sullivan 23 
 24 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 25 
Mayor Cadena led the Pledge of Allegiance. 26 
 27 
ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM 28 
Mayor Cadena called roll for a determination of a quorum.  Those present at roll call were 29 
Trustee Williamson, Trustee Barraza, Mayor Pro Tem Caro and Trustee Nelson. 30 
 31 
CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 32 
Motion:   Trustee Barraza moved to accept the agenda. 33 
Second:   Mayor Pro Tem Caro 34 
 35 
Vote:  Motion passed unanimously. 36 
 37 
ACCEPTANCE OF THE CONSENT AGENDA 38 
 39 
Motion:  Trustee Barraza moved to accept the consent agenda. 40 
Second:  Mayor Pro Tem Caro 41 
 42 
Vote:  Motion passed unanimously. 43 
 44 

* MINUTES 45 
1. Regular Meeting July 24, 2006. 46 
2. Special Meeting July 26, 2006. 47 
 48 
OPENING CEREMONY 49 
 50 
3. Presentation of Certificates of Valor. 51 



 

BOT MINUTES 08-14-06 - 2 - 

 1 
Fire Chief Zecha stated he was presenting two awards for the Fire Dept and the Marshal’s Dept.  2 
He explained that on July 18, 2006 Officer Enrique Salas and the Mesilla Fire Dept were 3 
dispatched to a man down behind Zia Middle School.  Without concern for their own safety 4 
Officer Salas and Firefighter Edward Vasquez jumped into the canal and pulled the victim out of 5 
the water.  The Mesilla Fire Dept and the Town of Mesilla acknowledged the bravery of these 6 
two public safety representatives and their selfless act. 7 
 8 
CASES RECOMMENDED FOR APPROVAL BY THE PLANNING, ZONING AND 9 
HISTORICAL APPROPRIATENESS COMMISSION (PZHAC): 10 
4. Case: 2006-147, 3116 Avenida de Mesilla, Lana Properties, LLC, a building permit to 11 

remodel an existing building.  Zone: RA. 12 
 13 
Motion:  Trustee Barraza moved to postpone Case 2006-147. 14 
Second:  Mayor Pro Tem Caro 15 
 16 
Mr. Decker stated this was a permit to remodel an existing building on the property.  The only 17 
question the P&Z had were what the existing building looked like and the applicant was reminded 18 
that the building was not to be rented.  He received a letter from the applicant that he understands 19 
this. 20 
 21 
Mr. Dean Cross stated his intention was to remodel the side building and one of the applicants 22 
would be living in that building.  He stated that currently the main building was for rent as a 23 
home. The small building that is being remodeled would not be rented. 24 
 25 
Trustee Barraza asked if this was considered two separate units and if they needed two separate 26 
meters. 27 
 28 
Mr. Decker stated that applicant was not at the P&Z meeting and it was not known at the time of 29 
approval that the main building would be rented.  The applicant was notified that the buildings 30 
cannot be rented without going through a special use permit.  What was presented was that the 31 
owners were going to live in the main building and the other building would be used for family 32 
use.  We can not stop anyone from renting their home, but now we have two living quarters on 33 
that property.  This can be done, but with a special use application. 34 
 35 
Mr. Cross stated there are two couples that own the property and one couple’s father would be 36 
living there.  He stated he was willing to have the two buildings metered separately.   37 
 38 
Mr. Decker stated that according to the code family can live on the property.   39 
 40 
Mayor Pro Tem Caro felt that the situation needed to be clarified before taking any action.    41 
 42 
Mayor Cadena suggested the applicant discuss with Mr. Decker exactly what he wanted to do and 43 
then Mr. Decker can make a recommendation.  He suggested the applicant attend the P&Z 44 
meeting. 45 
 46 
Vote:  Motion passed unanimously. 47 
 48 
OLD BUSINESS: 49 
5. Adoption of a resolution granting a certificate of appropriateness to Ms. Mary Hagins 50 

for property located at 2120 Calle de Picacho. 51 
 52 





 

 

 

 

 

 

PZHAC MEETING 

MINUTES 

JUNE 4, 2018 

(PART OF CONSENT AGENDA) 

  



 

                                                                                                 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

PZHAC WORK SESSION 
MINUTES 

JUNE 4, 2018 
 

THE PLANNING, ZONING AND HISTORICAL APPROPRIATENESS COMMISSION (PZHAC) WILL HOLD A WORK 
SESSION, MONDAY, JUNE 4, 2018 AT 5:30 P.M. IN THE BOARD ROOM OF THE MESILLA TOWN HALL, 2231 
AVENIDA DE MESILLA. 
 
Item 1: Submitted by Luis H. Vigil; a request to discuss plans to construct an addition of a living room and a garage to a dwelling at 
1365 Snow Road (Case 060728). Zoned: Rural Farm (RF)  
The applicant was present to discuss the request and answer any questions that might arise.  Staff provided a brief introduction of 
the case, stating that this case was postponed from the last meeting due to the fact that the applicant was not available to answer a 
question about egress from a bedroom that will be affected by the additions. Staff also reiterated that the subject dwelling is located 
on about 1/3 of an acre of corner lot that is part of a five acre parcel containing a legal non-conforming casita. The parcel was cut 
off from the larger parcel by an EBID drain that was constructed in the 1980’s or 90’s. This lot is still part of the larger parcel, 
and this is the principal dwelling on the lot.  
 
Discussion centered on the egress from the master bedroom, since the original egress to the outside is to be replaced by the 
proposed living room. The applicant explained that a window along a wall on the south side would still provide the required egress 
directly to the outside, and that this would satisfy the building code.  
 
There was no further discussion. 
 
Item 2: Submitted by Rocky Burke; a request to discuss plans to install a six foot high wood fence and gate across the front of two 
residential properties at and adjacent to 1988 Calle del Norte (Case 060734). Zoned: Historical Residential (HR) 
The applicant was present to discuss the request and answer any questions that might arise. Staff provided a brief introduction of 
the case, stating that a wood fence of this type and height is allowed by the Code, but that the PZHAC would need to determine that 
it is appropriate for the area. Staff mentioned that the applicant had provided photos of similar fences in the Town, and that the 
properties around the subject property had a variety of fences and walls that have been allowed by the Town. The applicant also 
stated that he had met with the NM Department of Transportation (NMDOT) since Calle del Norte is a State road, and that the 
DOT approved the location of the fence with respect to the road. (Staff explained that the DOT approval was for the location of the 
fence and gate only, the DOT was not making a determination as to the appropriateness of the design for the area.) 
 
The primary issue was the location of the gate to serve the two properties. There was concern that one property could be 
landlocked if the gate was entirely on one property and did not serve the other equally.  There were no other issues.  
 
Item 3: Submitted by Maria Rios; a request to discuss the construction of a freestanding carport on a residential property at 2472 Calle 
de Cura (Case 060736). Zoned: Historical Residential (HR) 
The applicant was not present to discuss the case. There was no discussion of the case. 

 
 

PZHAC REGULAR MEETING 
MINUTES 

JUNE 4, 2018   
 
THE PLANNING, ZONING AND HISTORICAL APPROPRIATENESS COMMISSION (PZHAC) WILL HOLD ITS 
REGULARLY SCHEDULED MEETING MONDAY, JUNE 4, 2018 AT 6:00 P.M. IN THE BOARD ROOM OF THE 
MESILLA TOWN HALL, 2231 AVENIDA DE MESILLA. 
 
I. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
II. ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM  

Commissioners Houston and Prieto were absent. All other commissioners were present. There was a quorum.  
 
 
 



 

III. CHANGES/APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
Staff recommended removal of Case 060736 since a discussion of the case had not taken place and the PZHAC was not ready 
to make a decision on the case.  Commissioner Lucero made a motion to approve the Agenda as amended, seconded by 
Commissioner Nevarez, and approved by a vote of 3 – 0. 

 
IV. *ACCEPTANCE OF THE CONSENT AGENDA 

Note: Items on the agenda indicated by an asterisk (*) are on the consent agenda and will be voted on with one motion unless a 
Commissioner requests that a specific item be removed for discussion. 
There were no changes to the Agenda. Commissioner Prieto made a motion to approve the Agenda, seconded by 
Commissioner Houston, and approved by a vote of 3 – 0. 
  

A. *PZHAC MINUTES – Meeting minutes of May 21, 2018. 
Approved as part of the Consent Agenda.    
 

B. *ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVAL 
Building Permits  
1. Case 060730 – 2900 Suite A, Avenida de Mesilla, submitted by Jerry Grandle for “Spotted Dog Brewery”; a request 

for a building permit to allow foam insulation to be applied to a portion of a roof on the commercial structure at this 
address. Zoned: General Commercial (C).  
Approved as part of the Consent Agenda. 

2. Case 060732 – 2685 Calle de Parian, submitted by Stephan McIlvaine; a request for a building permit to allow a rear 
fence to be relocated about 20” to a rear property line, and for the removal of dead branches from trees at a residential 
property at this address. Zoned: Historic Residential (HR). 
Approved as part of the Consent Agenda. 

3. Case 060733 – 2290 Calle de Parian, a request for a building permit to allow the repainting of window trim and 
installation of a glass panel over each window on a commercial structure at this address. Zoned: Historical 
Commercial (HC). 
Approved as part of the Consent Agenda. 
  

V. PZHAC NEW BUSINESS: 
A. PUBLIC INPUT ON CASES 

   Susan Krueger, resident: 
Case 060728 – Stated that only one primary dwelling is allowed on the property, not two. She also stated that the 

subject house should be considered the casita, and is legal non-conforming and cannot be expanded, since it came after 
the smaller house, which is larger than 600 square feet.. 

Case 060734 - Stated that there are many properties in the area that do not have walls, and that this should have been 
noted when staff was talking about walls in the area. Referring to the chain link fence between the applicant’s property 
and Andele’s restaurant, she said that the Town could have Mr. Binn’s (owner of the Andele’s property) remove the 
fence. 

 
B. CASES: 

Building Permits 
1. Case 060728 – 1365 Snow Road, submitted by Luis H. Vigil; a request to for a building permit to allow the addition 

of a living room and a garage to a dwelling at this address. Zoned: Rural Farm (RF). (Discussed during Work 
Session – Item 1) 
Staff stated that this request had been discussed during the Work Session and provided a brief description of the 
discussion. Staff reiterated the fact that the property was considered by Staff to be one property with two dwellings, 
not two separate properties divided by the drain; and that the subject dwelling was considered the principal 
dwelling. The other dwelling on the property, which is 800 square feet in size, was allowed by the Town in 2012 to 
replace an 800 square foot adobe dwelling that had existed on the property. The new dwelling was considered to be 
the casita at the time. (Records show that the large dwelling existed prior to 2008.)  
 
The only issue was the size of the existing window from the master bedroom to the outside, and whether this was 
large enough to meet the Code for egress windows.  A motion was made by Commissioner Lucero to approve the 
request with the condition that the master bedroom egress be addressed and approved by CID as part of the plan 
approval process.  This was seconded by Commissioner Nevarez, and the case was approved by a vote of 3 – 0. 
 

2. Case 060734 – 1988 Calle del Norte, submitted by Rocky Burke; a request for a building permit to install a six foot 
high wood fence and gate across the front of two properties at and adjacent to this address. Zoned: Historical 
Commercial (HC). (Discussed during Work Session – Item 2) 
Staff stated that this request had been discussed during the Work Session and provided a brief description of the 
discussion. The only issue was the possibility of creating a landlocked parcel if the proposed gate only provided 
access to one parcel. A motion was made by Commissioner Nevarez to approve the request with the condition that 
the gate be located in such a way as to straddle the property line between the two parcels so that access would be 
provided to each parcel.  This was seconded by Commissioner Lucero, and the case was approved by a vote of 3 – 0. 



 

 
3. Case 060736 – 2472 Calle de Cura, submitted by Maria Rios; a request for a building permit to allow a freestanding 

carport to be constructed on a residential property at this address. Zoned: Historical Residential (HR) (Discussed 
during Work Session – Item 3) 
Removed from the agenda. 

 
Business Registration 
4. Registration 0726 -  2350 Calle de Principal, submitted by Marianne Schweers for “Heart of the Desert Pistachios and 

Wines”; a request for a business registration to operate a retail store at this address. Zoned: Historical Commercial 
(HC) 
Staff provided a brief description of the request, explaining that the business already exists on the Plaza, and that 
this a new location that the business will move to while the other location is being closed down. There were no 
issues.  A motion was made by Commissioner Lucero to approve the request, seconded by Commissioner Nevarez, 
and approved by a vote of 3 – 0. 

 
Sign Permits           
5. Permit 060735 – 1910 Calle de Parian, submitted by Leah Messina for “Sinuate Media”, a request for a sign permit to 

install a 13.5 square foot sign on a commercial structure at this address. Zoned: Historical Commercial (HC).  
Staff provided a brief description of the request, explaining that the sign will be slightly smaller than the 15 square 
feet that the Code allows for the HC district, and that the sign will replace an existing wall sign for a previous 
business at this location. There were no issues.  A motion was made by Commissioner Lucero to approve the 
request, seconded by Commissioner Nevarez, and approved by a vote of 3 – 0. 
 

VI. PUBLIC COMMENTS - None 
  
VII. PZHAC/STAFF COMMENTS - None 

 
VIII. ADJOURNMENT  

The meeting was adjourned @ 6:36 pm. 

NOTICE 

If you need an accommodation for a disability to enable you to fully participate in the hearing 
or meeting, please contact us at 524-3262 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.   

Posted on 6/1/18 at the following locations: Town Hall - 2231 Avenida de Mesilla; Public 
Safety Building - 2670 Calle de Parian; Mesilla Community Center - 2251 Calle de Santiago; 
Shorty’s Food Mart - 2290 Avenida de Mesilla; Ristramnn Chile Co. - 2531 Avenida de Mesilla 
and the U.S. Post Office - 2253 Calle de Parian. 

 



 

 

 

 

 

PZHAC NEW BUSINESS 

JUNE 18, 2018 

 

PZHAC DECISIONS 

BUILDING PERMITS 

 

  



 
PZHAC ACTION FORM 

BUILDING PERMIT 060736 
[PZHAC REVIEW – 6/18/18] 

STAFF ANALYSIS 
 
 

(Decision to be based on information presented during the Work Session – Item 1) 
 
 
Item: 
Case 060736 – 2472 Calle de Cura, submitted by Maria Rios; a request for a building permit to allow a freestanding 
carport to be constructed on a residential property at this address. Zoned: Historical Residential (HR) 
  
Staff Analysis: 
The proposed work was discussed at today’s work session in order to give the applicant a chance to explain how and why 
the carport was built without a permit, and to answer to any resulting questions. (Please refer to the information provided 
in the write-up for this item in the Work Session.) 
 
If it is determined that the construction and/or style of the carport is architecturally appropriate or acceptable for the 
property as built, or if an alternate solution is arrived at, then the request can be approved on the assumption that all 
requirements of the Code will be satisfied. The PZHAC should continue on to approve the request based on the Findings 
stated below. 
 
If, on the other hand, it is determined that the carport is not be architecturally appropriate or acceptable to the property, 
and no other solution can be reached, then the PZHAC should either postpone the request further until the applicant can 
return with a proposal that meets the standards set forth by the PZHAC; or the PZHAC should deny the request based on 
the request not meeting any or all of the Findings as listed.  
 
Estimated Cost: @ $2,325.00 
   
Consistency with the Code:  
The PZHAC will need to determine that the proposed carport is consistent with the development of land in the HR zoning 
district. Additionally, the PZHAC will need to determine that the request meets all other development and application 
requirements of the Code.  
  
The PZHAC will also need to determine that the request, as submitted, is consistent with the all other sections of the 
Building and Zoning Codes that may be applied to this project. 
 
Findings: 

• The PZHAC has jurisdiction to review and approve this request. 
• The proposed work consists of constructing a carport in front of a dwelling on the property. 
• The PZHAC has determined that the proposed carport meets all applicable Code requirements. 

 
PZHAC ACTION: 
 
 





PZHAC ACTION FORM 
BUILDING PERMIT REQUEST CASE 060737 

[PZHAC REVIEW – 6/18/2018] 
 

Item: 
Case 060737 - 1986 Calle de Cura, submitted by Dianne Moore; a request for a building permit to add a 
gate across a driveway, and replace an existing four foot high white picket fence with a six foot high 
white picket fence around a property at this address. Zoned: Historic Residential (HR). 
  
Staff Analysis:   
The applicant would like to increase the height of a four foot high white picket fence around the property 
at this address. This will be a replacement of the existing fence. The new fence will be almost exactly the 
same style and color of the existing fence, with the only differences being the height and the shape of the 
dog ears at the tops of the pickets. The fence will be installed on the property line in the same location as 
the existing fence. Since this is a corner property, the applicant will need to abide by the requirements for 
a clear-sight-triangle at this location, as per Section 18.60.340(D) and (G) of the Code. 
 
A short section of fence, with no spacing between the slats, will be installed at a rear corner of the 
property along a block wall to add some privacy to the rear yard. The applicant will also add a gate across 
a driveway to the property. 
 
The style of the fence will be almost identical to the fence it is replacing, and since the existing fence was 
approved for this property, the fence should be allowed by the Code for this property. Additionally, a six 
foot height across the front of the property is allowed by Section 18.60.340 (stated below).  
 
 Estimated Cost: @ $1,100.00 
   
Consistency with the Code:  

Chapter 18.35 Historic Residential Zone 
18.35.040 New structures. 
New structures may be built in this zone providing the exterior appearance of the structure is 
approved by the commission. [Ord. 94-06 § 1; prior code § 11-2-11.4.D] 
 
18.60.340 Wall, fence, or hedge. 
A. Height (see illustration in Appendix A). 
1. A six-foot maximum height above ground surface level shall be permitted on any part of the 
required setbacks of front yards or side yards abutting a street in H-R and H-C zones; provided, such 
wall, fence or hedge is in accord with subsections (D) and (G) of this section. 

 
The proposed wall appears to be compliant with all other applicable Codes concerning residential 
construction in the Historic Residential (HR) zone.   
  
Findings: 

• The PZHAC has jurisdiction to review and recommend approval of this request to the BOT. 
• The proposed work replacing a four foot high white picket fence with a six foot high picket fence 

of the same style and color.  
• The proposed fence is similar in style to other fences in the area.     
• The proposed fence appears to meet all applicable sections of the Code.   

 
PZHAC OPTIONS: 

Recommend approval of the application to the BOT. 
Recommend approval of the application with conditions to the BOT. 
Reject the application. 

 
PZHAC  ACTION: 

 



Doña Ana County, NM
General Reference Maps

Select Search Type: 2014 Aerial Addresses County Address Points

Map Themes
Parcels

UDC Zoning

Roads and Transportation

NM House Districts

NM Senate Districts

County Commission Districts

City Council Districts

Median Household Income

General Land Ownership

Account Number: R0400387
Parcel Number: 4006137314503
Owner: BUCKINGHAM ROBERT
WILLIAM
Mail Address: PO BOX Y
Subdivision: 
Property Address: 1986 CALLE DE
CURA
Acres: 0.15

Maps Legend
+
–

http://assessor.donaanacounty.org/assessor/taxweb/account.jsp?accountNum=R0400387&guest=true


PHOTOS OF EXISTING FENCE 
 

 
 

 
 







 
PZHAC ACTION FORM 

BUILDING PERMIT 060738 
[PZHAC REVIEW – 6/18/18] 

STAFF ANALYSIS 
 
 

(Decision to be based on information presented during the Work Session – Item 2) 
 
 
Item: 
Case 060738 - 2231 Calle de Parian, submitted by Gilbert Madrid for Eric and Teresa Sanchez, a request for a building 
permit to repair windows, doors, lintels, vigas, and stucco; and repaint a historic dwelling at this address. Zoned: Historic 
Residential (HR) 
  
Staff Analysis: 
The proposed work was discussed in the PZHAC Work Session held prior to this meeting.  (Please refer to the 
information provided in the write-up for this item in the Work Session.) 
 
If it is determined that the proposed repairs to the subject dwelling are historically and architecturally acceptable to the 
Town as proposed, or if an alternate solution is arrived at, then the request can proceed on the assumption that all 
requirements of the Code will be satisfied. The PZHAC should continue on to approve the request based on the Findings 
stated below. 
 
If, on the other hand, it is determined that the proposed repairs to the subject dwelling would not be historically and 
architecturally acceptable to the Town, and no other solution can be reached, then the PZHAC should either postpone the 
request further until the applicant can return with a proposal that meets the standards set forth by the PZHAC; or the 
PZHAC should deny the request based on the request not meeting any or all of the Findings as listed.  
 
Estimated Cost: @ TBD 
   
Consistency with the Code:  
The PZHAC will need to determine that the proposed repairs, when finished, will be consistent with the historical and 
architectural requirements for such work in the HR zoning district. Additionally, the PZHAC will need to determine that 
the request meets all other development and application requirements of the Code.  
  
The PZHAC will also need to determine that the request, as submitted, is consistent with the all other sections of the 
Building and Zoning Codes that may be applied to this project. 
 
Findings: 

• The PZHAC has jurisdiction to review and approve this request. 
• The proposed work consists of repairing various external aspects of a historic dwelling at this address. 
• The PZHAC has determined that the proposed repairs to the dwelling meet all applicable Code requirements. 

 
PZHAC ACTION: 
 

 

 

 

 





 
 

PZHAC ACTION FORM 
BUILDING PERMIT 060739 

[PZHAC REVIEW – 6/18/18] 
STAFF ANALYSIS 

 
 

(Decision to be based on information presented during the Work Session – Item 3) 
 
 
Item: 
Case 060739 – 3116 Avenida de Mesilla, submitted by Norman Fristoe for LAMA Properties, LLC; a request for a 
building permit to renovate a storage structure at this address. Zoned: Rural Agricultural (RA) 
  
Staff Analysis: 
The proposed work was discussed in the PZHAC Work Session held prior to this meeting.  (Please refer to the 
information provided in the write-up for this item in the Work Session.) 
 
If it is determined that the construction and/or style of the proposed renovations to the storage building are acceptable to 
the Town as proposed, or if an alternate solution is arrived at, then the request can proceed on the assumption that all 
requirements of the Code will be satisfied. The PZHAC should continue on to approve the request based on the Findings 
stated below. 
 
If, on the other hand, it is determined that the proposed renovations to the storage building would not be acceptable to the 
Town, and no other solution can be reached, then the PZHAC should either postpone the request further until the applicant 
can return with a proposal that meets the standards set forth by the PZHAC; or the PZHAC should deny the request based 
on the request not meeting any or all of the Findings as listed.  
 
Estimated Cost: @ $50,000.00 
   
Consistency with the Code:  
The PZHAC will need to determine that the proposed renovations, when finished, will be consistent with the construction 
of storage structures in the RA zoning district. Additionally, the PZHAC will need to determine that the request meets all 
other development and application requirements of the Code.  
  
The PZHAC will also need to determine that the request, as submitted, is consistent with the all other sections of the 
Building and Zoning Codes that may be applied to this project. 
 
Findings: 

• The PZHAC has jurisdiction to review and approve this request. 
• The proposed work consists of renovating an existing storage structure at this address. 
• The PZHAC has determined that the proposed renovations to the storage structure meet all applicable Code 

requirements. 
 
PZHAC ACTION: 
 

 

 





 

 

 

 

PZHAC NEW BUSINESS 

JUNE 18, 2018 

 

PZHAC DECISIONS 

BUSINESS REGISTRATIONS 

  



PZHAC ACTION FORM 
BUSINESS REGISTRATION REQUEST 

[PZHAC REVIEW – 6/18/2018] 
STAFF ANALYSIS 

 
Item: 
Registration 0727 - 2011 Avenida de Mesilla, submitted by Mickey Balderas for “The Bean Cafe”; a request for a 
business registration to transfer ownership of an existing cafe at this address. Zoned: Historical Commercial (HC) 
 
Description of Business: 
The purpose of the application is to allow the applicant to take over ownership of “The Bean Café” and to continue 
the operation without any changes to the operation at this time. The operation will continue as a café and breakfast 
shop as it has been. This is a use that is allowed in the HC district, and has been allowed at this location for several 
years. The change in ownership will not result in any changes to the occupancy of the structure, or change the 
character of the area.   
 
Consistency with the Code: 
The request is to continue the operation an approved cafe in the Historic Commercial district, but under a new owner. 
The use is consistent with all applicable sections of the MTC. There will be no changes to the use. The structure was 
originally designed foe se as a gas station, but has been used for other commercial purposes since the gas station 
closed.   
 
The requested change in ownership will not result in any changes to the external physical elements or style of the 
structure.  There may be some cosmetic changes to the interior of the structure 
 
Findings of Fact: 

• The PZHAC has jurisdiction to review and approve this request. 
• The proposed change in ownership of the business will not result in any changes to the commercial character 

of the structure. 
• This is a use that is allowed by the MTC in this zoning district. 
• The proposed use will not create any negative impacts to the area. 

 
PZHAC OPTIONS: 

Approve the application.     
Approve the application with conditions. 
Reject the application. 

 
PZHAC ACTION: 

 
PHOTO OF LOCATION 

 



Doña Ana County, NM
General Reference Maps

Select Search Type: 2014 Aerial Addresses County Address Points

Map Themes
Parcels

UDC Zoning

Roads and Transportation

NM House Districts

NM Senate Districts

County Commission Districts

City Council Districts

Median Household Income

General Land Ownership

Account Number: R0400311
Parcel Number: 4006137228335
Owner: TOW LIMITED LIABILITY
COMPANY
Mail Address: 3150 BOWMAN
Subdivision: 
Property Address: 2011 AVENIDA DE
MESILLA
Acres: 0.375

Maps Legend
+
–

http://assessor.donaanacounty.org/assessor/taxweb/account.jsp?accountNum=R0400311&guest=true





	BOT MINUTES 08-14-06.pdf
	CHANGES TO THE AGENDA
	ACCEPTANCE OF THE CONSENT AGENDA




